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and commission members (collectively, “City”) from any and all i ability, loss, suits, claims, damages, costs, judgments
and expenses (including attorney's fees and costs of litigation), including any appeals thereto (collectively, “proceeding”)
brought against the City with regard to any approvals issued in connection with the application(s) by the City, inclu ding
any action taken pursuant fo the California Environmental Quality Act. If Applica nt is required to d efend the City in
connection with such proceeding, the City shall have and retain the right to approve counsel to so defend the City; and all
significant decisions concerning the manner in which the defense is cond ucted; and any and all settlements, whic h
approval shall not be unreasona bly withheld. The City shall al so have and retain the ri ght to not particip ate in the
defense, except that the City agrees to reasonably cooperate with Applicant in the defense of the proceeding. If the City’s
Attorney’s Office participates in the defense, all City Attorney fees and costs shall be paid by Applicant. Further, Applicant
agrees to defend, indemnify and hold harmless the City from: and for all costs and fees incurred in additional investigation
or study of, or for supplementing, revising, or amending, any document if made necessary by said proceeding.
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Supplemental Application for
" HISTORIC DESIGNATION

Note: In addition to this application, a completed Planmng Division Master Application Form is
also required.

PROPERTY PROPOSED FOR DESIGNATION

1. Name of Property: : 'ﬂq( {—Ifw/‘f"F”Yd H‘DUQ”

2. Property Address: /%7 /\/ Los_fables Mye. Fwdens A4

w

Date of Original Construction

B

Original Owner /} /ﬁfe A quﬁ"—ﬁ/ ﬂ{

o

Architect / Builder: David___ Fen?on

DESIGNATION CATEGORY
(CHECK APPROPRIATE BOX—SEE CRITERIA ON PAGES 2 & 3 FOR MORE INFORMATION):

[_]HISTORIC MONUMENT

MMARK

[ ] HISTORIC SIGN
[ ] LANDMARK TREE

BRIEF DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTY -
Briefly describe the property proposed for designation, indicating whether the entire site or a portion
of the site is the subject of the nomination (e.g., how many buildings or objects on the site are
included in the nomination) or if the nomination is for an object, sign or tree. A map may be used for
the description. Please also submit recent and, if avallable historical photographs. Use additional
sheets if necessary.
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SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION ON SIGNIFICANCE OF PROPERTY

With this application, please attach information that will assist staff with the preparation of a
designation report. Books, photographs, articles, and other archival information will all be useful to
document the significance of the nominated resource.

Refer to bibliography, h\stoncal photographs, chronology, and other supporting mfo\'matm

Revssed 4/201 1
W:Design-hp\Permit Center Applications & Handouts 1




o' O

o Supplemehtél Apblféatidn for
_ HISTORIC DESIGNATION

LEGAL DESCRIPTION .

Attach a copy of the most recently recorded legal description for the property (usually in the deed for
the property or other documents when the property was purchased—also available from a title
company).

CRITERIA FOR DESIGNATION

Check the box under the category checked on first page that corresponds to the criterion under which
you are nominating the property, object, sign or tree for designation. Multiple boxes may be checked
if applicable.

CRITERIA FOR DESIGNATING AN HISTORIC MONUMENT
(May include significant public or semi-public interior spaces and features)

A. ltis associated with events that have made a significant contribution to the broad
patterns of the history of the region, state or nation.

B. Itis associated with the lives of persons who are significant in the history of the region,
state or nation. '

C. Itis exceptional in the embodiment of the distinctive characteristics of a historic
7{ resource property type, period, architectural style or method of construction, or that is
an exceptional representation of the work of an architect, designer, engineer, or builder
whose work is significant to the region, state or nation, or that possesses high artistic
values that are of regional, state-wide or national significance. -

D. It has yielded, or may be likely to yield, information important in prehistory or history of
the region, state or nation. -

O] =@ oo

CRITERIA FOR DESIGNATING A LANDMARK

A. Itis associated with events that have made a significant contribution to the broad
patterns of the history of the City, region, or State.  _

B. It is associated with the lives of persons who are significant in the history of the City,
region, or State.

C. It embodies the distinctive characteristics of a type, architectural style, period, or

" method of construction, or represents the work of an architect, designer, engineer, or
builder whose work is of significance to the City or, to the region or possesses artistic
values of significance to the City or to the region. '

0| @ |Ojo

D. It has yielded, or may be likely to yield, information important locally in prehistory or
history. B ‘ '

Revised 4/2011
W:\Design-hp\Permit Center Applications & Handouts : 2
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" Supplemental Application for
HISTORIC DESIGNATION |

CRITERIA FOR DESIGNATING A HISTORIC SIGN

It is exemplary of technology, craftsmanship or design of the period when it was
constructed, uses historic sign materials and means of illumination, and is not
significantly altered from its historic period. Historic sign materials shall include metal or
wood facings, or paint directly on the fagade of a building. Historic means of illumination
shall include incandescent light fixtures or neon tubing on the exterior of the sign. if the

_sign has been altered, it must be restorable to its historic function and appearance.

It is integrated with the architecture of the building.

o|m|

It demonstrates extraordinary aesthetic quality, creativity, or innovation.

__CRITERIA FOR DESIGNATING A LANDMARK TREE

. ltis one of the largest or oldest trees of the species located in the City.

l:l B.

it has tistorical significance due to an association with a historic event, person, site,

" street, or structure.

[T <

It is a defining landmark or significant outstanding feature of a neighborhood.

DESIGNATION PROCESS (INFORMATION ONLY: NO ACTION REQUIRED)
§17.62.050 Pasadena Municipal Code:

1. A preliminary evaluation by staff to determine if the nominated property meets the applicable
criteria and is eligible for designation.

2. If staff determines that the nominated property is eligible for designation, the nomination is
scheduled for a public hearing before the Historic Preservation Commission. f not, the
applicant may appeal the determination of ineligibility to the Historic Preservation Commission
or it may be called for review by the Historic Preservation Commission or City Council.

3. If the Historic Preservation Commission finds that the nominated resource qualifies for
designation, it forwards a recommendation on the designation to the City Council.

4. At a noticed pubic hearing, the Council then determines whether to approve or disapprove the
application. '

Revised 4/2011
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D. M. Renton |
AUTOBIOGRAPHICAL NOTES

Edited and Annotated
" by John Ripley

Annotations and introduction © 1995 by Johin Ripley. May be reproduced for non-profit purposes.



o) O
. D. M. Renton
AUTOBIOGRAPHICAL NOTES
Edited and Annotated by John Ripley

Introduction

. David Malcolm Renton (1878-1947) was an executive of the Santa Catalina Island
Company from about 1920 until he retired in 1936. As General Manager of all of the
company’s operations, he had an enormous influence on_ the island and its development.
Catalina Island was owned by a syndicate controlled by chewing gum millionaire William
Wrigley of Chicago, and Renton was Wrigley’s top man in a private kingdom rivaling William
Randolph Hearst’s, at least in size. ' : '

Renton, like Wrigley, was a self-made man who started with very little. He began as a’
- carpenter; then graduated to contracting. He met Wrigley through a building job and within
five years was established in Avalon as Wrigley’s right-hand man. Upon retiring, Renton was
. able to purchase a ranch in Atascadero, where he spent most of his later years. His sons had
successful careers of their own, one of them with the Santa Catalina Island Company. By
.almost any standards, Renton had a very successful life and career. - -

. Sometime after his retirement, Renton produced a short set of autobiographical notes.
Presumably he was writing mostly for his own family. In about 1983, the City of Pasadena
received a copy of the typescript of these notes from Malcolm J. Renton, D. M. Renton’s
son. The notes have handwritten emendations that may be by D. M. Renton or Malcolm.

- The notes put a strong emphasis on Renton’s early career as a Pasadena building
contractor, and it is this aspect of his life that prompted this annotated version. ' D. M.
Renton was one of ‘the most aétive and successful of the builders who made Pasadena
synonymous with the bungalow and the Craftsman style. When he arrived in the city in
1902, the Pasadena interpretation of Arts and Crafts architecture was just beginning to
emerge in the work of architects such as Frederick Roehrig and Greene & Greene. Renton’s
early contracting included work for both of these firms—particularly Gréene &-Greene, for
whom he built at least seven homes. ‘Like many other local contractors, he absorbed the
forms and details that were making Pasadena famous as a center of West Coast architecture.
By about 1909, he was producing designs of his own that blended these influences in an
individual and pleasing way. The combination of his nack for designing in this mode and his
commercial success resulted in a lasting positive impact on Pasadena’s neighborhoods.

Renton’s notes offer glimpses into an important era of Pasadena’s architectural history.
However, they seem to have been written assuming a knowledge of family and area to which
today’s readers have limited access. The annotations are intended to make the notes more
meaningful to Pasadenans by fleshing out references and providing background information.
The comparative lack of -annotations relating to Catalina Island reflects the Pasadena
perspective and the sources available to the editor.



Sources

Anderson, Carson. “Report on Survey Findings, Ethnic History Research Project,” March
1995. . Prepared under contract to the City of Pasadena, this report covers an overview of
the history of several racial-ethnic groups in the city. The report describes South Vernon
Avenue (where Renton’s mill -and family residences were located) as the core
neighborhood of the African-American community around the turn of the century. -

Apostol, Jane. South Pasadena: A Centennial History, South Pasadena Public Library, 1987.
A general history; contains information on the Dobbins bikeway and on the Nazarene.
Church. Renton is not mentioned. '

Belloli, Jay, et al. Myron Hunt, 1868-1952: The Search for A Regional Architecture,-
Hennessey and Ingalls, Santa Monica, 1984. The list of buildings by Hunt (p. 110,
compiled by Jan Furey Muntz) shows the Snow Telescope and “Monastery” on Mount -
Wilson as works of the firm of Hunt and Grey. ’

Blair; William L. Pasadena Community Book, Arthur H. Cawston, Pasadena, 1943. One of a
series; available at the Pasadena Public Library and the Pasadena Historical Museum.
Contains a short biography of Arthur L. Ryder (p. 385). '

Gebhard, David, and Robert Winter. Los Angeles, An Architectural Guide, Gibbs Smith, Salt
Lake City,-1994. The section .on Santa Catalina Island refers directly to Renton’s work.

The introduction to the Pasadena sections provides an overview of the Pasadena “scene” in
Renton’s era. '

Los Angeles City Directories. Essentially complete collection at the Los Angeles Central
Library; broken collection at the Pasadena Public Library. Primarily used here to provide
information on the Milwaukee Building Company (Meyer & Holler).

Mountain View Cemetery. Grave records on file at offices in Altadena, California. The
cemetery has written records of the full names and the dates of birth and death of those

buried there, including most early Pasadenans.. The Renton family plot is number 782;
Ryder is 588; Ellsworth 757.

Orange Heights Tract subdivision map. Copies of the tract map (from county records) were.
' provided by Roy Oshita, who has compiled a wealth of information on the neighborhood.

Pasadena City Directories. A complete collection is on microfilm at the Pasadena Public

.. Library, which also has copies for 1919 onward in open stacks. The Pasadena Historical
Museum has a nearly complete set as well. The names of spouses were supplied
beginning in 1915. , .

Pasadena newspapers. The Pasadena Public Library has a nearly complete collection on
microfilm. ~Many articles have béen extracted and filed in the library’s Pasadena
biography notebooks, for which there is a card index. Articles from Fred C. Shoup’s
“Auld Lange Syne” series in the Star-News are indexed and filed in notebooks at the
Pasadena Historical Museum. The following newspapers contained information relating
to D. M. Renton: Pasadena Daily News (PDN); - Pasadena Post; Pasadena Star (PS);
Pasadena Star-News (PSN). Footnotes give the dates.

Pasadena Historical Museum. The ephemera collection (box 20B) contains a small collection
of papers relating to Thomas F. Ellsworth and his family. T

3.
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Pasadena, City of. ‘Records contained in the city archives, now housed in the Hale Building,
include the following: building permit records; tax assessor’s records; and the Meriwether
Files on architects, contractors, and neighborhoods, including files on Renton, Upton,
Ellsworth, and Orange Heights. The editor has an electronic list of all 1904-1918 building

permits for the construction of houses, and this was used to compile a list of Renton'’s
residential output. -

" Renton, D. M. Autobiographical notes, c1936 (typescript). A xerographic copy is contained
in the Renton folder of the Meriwether Files in the City archjves. .

Renton, D. M. Residence for J. H. Woodworth and Son [1914]. Blueprints of Renton'’s
" plans for the house at 965 N. Holliston Avenue were in the possession of the owner as of
- 1995. The plans aré complete and include foundation, floor plans, elevations, and details.
The house was built by the Woodworth real estate firm and sold to David Zook;

- reference BP 3794A, 6/11/1914, $4,300.

‘Robinson, John W. The San Gabriels, Golden West Books, San Marino, 1977. This general
‘history . ‘of the San Gabriel Mountains contains chapters dealing ‘with Mount Wilson as
both a resort and an astronomy center. Renton’s 1904 projects are well covered, although -
“he is not mentioned. ' ' ' .

Sanborn Company Fire Insurarice Maps. The City of Pasadena has the 1903, 1910, and 1931
editions (with updates). The Pasadena Historical Museum has all but 1903. These
detailed maps were particularly useful as sources of information on the neighborhoods
now displaced by the [-210 freeway, including Renton’s mill and his early homes.

Scheid, Ann. Pasadena: Crown of the Valley, Windsor Publications, 1986. This general
overview of Pasadena’s history includes a section on the “Arroyo Culture and Craftsman
Pasadena” (pp. 120-123)." Renton is not mentioned. ' '

Storrer, William Allin. The Frank Lloyd Wright Companion, University of Chicago Press,
Chicago, 1993. Contains information on Wrigley’s Arizona Biltmore properties.
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D. M. RENTON!

Prince Edward Island,? of which my father, John Renton, was also a native, was my
birthplace on February 8, 1878 in the city of Georgetown,? and I was the second of a family
-of seven. Father was born in Georgetown of Scottish parents, who came to Canada in A
He took as his bride in ___5 Catherine Nicholson,5 who was born at Dundas, riot far away.

Father was a builder of homes and of ships, a man, moreover, that everyone looked up
to in the little community where he lived. He was raised a Presbyterian and became an elder
in the church. He had a strong voice, though untrained, and used his foot to beat time as he
sang. The louder he sang, the harder he beat. - ‘

Father was known to be a strong man. A distinguishing, if invisible, feature of his large
* frame was that his ribs were connected together. When we were very small, he contracted
pleural pneumonia and passed on.” “His remains still lie in the Georgetown cemetery.

! The typescript uses this title rather than DMR’s full name of David Malcolm Renton. Later passages imply
that he was known to business associates as “D. M." rather than David, Dave, etc. City directory listings were
usually as David M. Renton. The form of address used by immediate family members is not known.

2 Prince Edward Island is one of Canada’s Maritime (Atlantic) Provinces, north of Nova Scotia and east of New
Brunswick in the Gulf of St. Lawrence.

3 Georgetown is on the eastern shore of the island, about 30 miles east of the capital of Charlottetown.
4 DMR left a blank here for the date, which he never filled in.

5 DMR left a blank here for the date of his parents’ marriage. Since John and Catherine Renton had seven
children beginning in 1877, it seems likely that they were married in about 1876.

6 Catherine Nicholson Renton is buried in Mountain View Cemetery, Altadena. Cemetery records show her
year of birth as 1847; she died February 24, 1930. Mrs. Renton was listed in Pasadena city directories of July
1906 and also September 1909 through December 1911 at 120-122 S. Vernon, the same address as William

Renton (and sometimes DMR). She moved to 40 Dayton in 1913, 764 Summit in 1914, and 1241 E. Villa in
- 1918, the last year she was listed. She was always listed at the same ‘address as her three daughters (Edith,
Minnie, and Sadi€). Probably Mrs. Renton came to California in 1906—perhaps for DMR's wedding that
year—and stayed for the remainder of her life. '

7 The birth and death dates for John Renton are unknown to the editor. However, since his wife Catherine was
born in 1847, it seems likely that John was born about 1845. '



His death left Father’s large family of-small children without support, and William,8
the eldest, then _ 9 years old, sailed for Boston on a ship loaded with. potatoes and oats, got a
job with a Mr. Temple of Reading, Massachusetts, and served under him until grown to
- manhood. Mr. Temple took William into his family and gave him a good bringing up.
. William regularly attended church and Sunday School and became very active in the
Y.M.C.A. of Reading, a small New England town about 30 miles from Boston.10

I left home at the age of __ ! and after the fire in Windsor, Nova Scotia,'2 worked
until I got enough money to pay my way from Yarmouth!3 to Boston, I was fortunate enough
to get a job with a Mr. Elliot-in Lynn, Massachusetts,! and picked up enough experience in
the short time [ was with him to think [ was a carpenter. Later I served under Pittman-
Brown!> in Salem, until I became a-journeyman carpenter. Meantime, I studied at night
school and took a course in Scranton Correspondence School, which gave me the start of my
education. _ :

During the wintérs, I worked all along the North Shore at Beverly Farms, Pride’s

Crossing, Magnolia and Manchester, which was the real seashore resort for Boston and New
York folk.16 '

8 John William Renton is buried in Mountain View Cemetery, where records give his date of birth as 1877 and
his date of death as February 2, 1912. Obituaries in the Pasadena Star (PS) and Pasadena Daily News (PDN) of
© 2/3/12 say he died at his home at 279 DelLacey, having lived in Pasadena for 8 years. Neither obituary
mentions the cause of his death at only 35 years of age. He was first listed in Pasadena city directories in the
July 1905 edition, in which he was shown as a building contractor with business and residence at 112 S. Vernon
Avenue, the same address as DMR. In 1906 he was again at DMR’s address, living at 120 S. Vernon, one of two
small houses built in late 1905 by DMR on his mill and yard property. William was listed as a carpenter with D.
M. Renton in the 1907 directory. He was listed as a carpenter in the directories of September 1908 and
December 1911, both at 122 S. Vernon. :

9 DMR left a blank here for William's age upon leaving Canada. Since William was the oldest of seven children,
it seems safe to assume that he was at least 8 years old. :

10 Reading is actually about 10 miles north-northwest of Boston. : ‘
11 DMR left a blank here. Pending a better estimate from the family, we can probably assume that he was

~ between 12 and 17, making the date somewhere betiveen 1890 and 1895.

12 Windsor is about 40 miles northwest of Halifax on the shore of the Minas Basin. Obviously a major fire
occurred in Windsor, but the editor has not ascertained the date. Apparently DMR obtained work as a result of |
the fire, but this is not entirely clear. . : :
13 Yarmouth is a seaport on the southwestern tip of Nova Scotia.

" 14 Lynn is about 10 miles northeast of Boston, midway between Boston and Salem.

15 An article on Ellsworth and Compiny in the Pasadena Evening Star of May 6, 1904, says that Putman Brown
of Salem built many of the largest buildings in Salem and Essex County. DMR's typescript has Pittman rather
than Putman. The context of the PES article seems to indicate that Putman Brown was the name of a person,
and should not be hyphenated. More information is needed. ' : ‘

16 Note that DMR 'states that he worked on the North Shore during the winters. Presumably winter was the

off-season for these resort areas, and construction was probably done then to avoid interfering with summer
business. ’ - :

6



Expecting to go to work on a power bla_ht for a New York company, I went down to
Hartford, Connecticut, only to find the job was delayed thirty days because of steel delivery. .
In those days, wages were small (I made 17) and as | had no money to live on, I could

not wait thirty days, so took a jeb with a Russian for a $1.50 a day, helping to build a cigar
factory. :

Everyone on the job was a foreigner. No one spoke English but the boss, who could
speak five languages. I worked for him about a year and he raised my wage to $2.00 a day,
offering me $2.50 if I would stay. But malaria fever was so bad there that I'was having chills
every other day and the doctor advised me to leave.

Brother Will was working on a new brewery building in Providence, Rhode Island, and
I thought I would get a job with him. Because I was young in years, I let my whiskers grow
to give the -impression of age. The boss asked me all sorts of questions about reading plans
and laying out work which, when [.was only asking for a first class carpenter job, seemed
unnecessary, but my night training stood me in good stead and [ was able to answer all the
questions he-asked. ' :

I did not take the job, however, but went back to-Massachusetts and returned to the
North Shore. ' ' '

When ‘working on a bank buiPding in Salem, | met Samuel Upton!$ and worked with
him as a journeyman. The weather was very cold and finally I told him that if | had to work
at this trade and if theré was any warmer place in the world, I would go there.

Upton had a friend by the name of Ellsworth,!9 whose father lived in Pasadena.? We
wrote him and he advised us to come.2!

17 DMR left a blank here. Obviously, from the rest of this sentence, he was making something near $1.50 per
day. : . ,

18 Samuel Warren Upton 673/ 1874-10/13/1914 per records at Mountain View). A native of Peabody,
Massachusetts (near Salem), Upton died in an auto accident near Eagle Rock (PES & PDN 10/13/14). He left a

wife and 4 sons. A 1904 newspaper article (PES 5/6/04, with a portrait of Upton) said he had a “small family”
~ at that time, so he may have been married when DMR first knew him.

19 Herbert Lee Ellsworth (10/19/1866-3/31/1963 per records at Mountain View). Biographical information is
contained in PES 5/6/04 (including a portrait) and PSN 4/2/63 (obituary). Herbert Ellsworth was born in
Newburyport, Massachusetts. He married Mary Elizabeth Geyer (1868-7/3/50 per Mountain View) of
Gloucester in 1886. He came to Pasadena in 1887 and remained until about 1894, returning to Massachusetts.
He served a five year apprenticeship with C. L:‘Becket, a large contracting firm. He was later with Putman
Brown (contractor) of Salem, where he met Samuel Upton. Except for a few short absences, Ellsworth lived in
Pasadena from 1902 until about 1953 (city directories). He died in a San Gabriel rest home at the age of 96.

20 Thomas Foulds Ellsworth (11/12/1840-8/29/1911 per Mountain View). Biographical information and a
copy of his birth certificate are in the Ephemera collection of the Pasadena Historical Museum (box 20B). He
was born in Ipswich, Massachusetts, the son of Benjamin (a cordwainer) and Laura Titus Ellsworth. He served
in the infantry during the civil war, rising through merit promotions from private to captain. He was belatedly
awarded the medal of honor in 1895 for “most distinguished gallantry in action at Honey Hill, South Carolina,
11/30/64." He was an officer of the Boston Custom House from 1869, to 1895. He was first listed in the
Pasadena City Directory in 1903. Initially he lived at 294 N. Orange Grove (SE corner of Mundell); he moved
to 1767 San Pasqual in 1906. Besides Herbert, he apparently had two other sons with him in California: Elmer
F. (10/10/1862-11/28/1915"per Mountain View) and Alfred H. (2/2/1869-12/27/1932 per Mountain View),
a silversmith who worked for Clemens Friedell. His wife Harriet C. Ellsworth (11/1/1841-9/24/33 per
Mountain View) lived in Pasadena until her death.
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In August 1901 or 1902,22 we formed a building company. My capital was small,
consisting of an overcoat, part of a sack of tools which I had carried because of my inability to
pay for excess baggage, and about $50. The name of our company was Upton, Ellsworth and
Renton? and after we had struggled along for about six months, I decided my best bet was to
dissolve partnership,2+ for Mr. Ellsworth,25 who kept the books, was overdrawn most of the
time, although he kept telling us we were way ahead, thinking he had a real balance.

I had to wait till the first of the year?S for a financial settlement and in the meantime,
Mrs. F. F. Rowland?” made me acquainted with William Parks 28

21 DMR’s account differs somewhat from the account given by the Ellsworths in the Pasadena Evening Star of
5/6/1904. According to the newspaper article, Thomias Ellsworth moved to Pasadena “when the members: of
his family chose Pasadena as their permanent home,” presumably meaning 1902. This seems to jibe with the
initial city directory listings of 1903 for Thomas, Herbert, Alfred, and Elmer. According to the same article,
Herbert Ellsworth had lived in Pasadena from 1887 to about 1894, -Thus, it appears that Herbert may have
‘been the one familiar with Pasadena and urging the move. Perhaps Thomas went out on a “scouting trip” and
. wrote that conditions appeared good. . :

22 Apparently 1902 is the correct year. The 1903 Pasadena City Directory lists Ellsworth, Upton, and Renton
as the partners of Ellsworth and Company. The company was not listed in the 1901 or 1902 directories.
Neither building permiits nor the Builder and Contractor magazine show any Ellsworth jobs until 1902. .

23 The Upton-Ellsworth-Renton partnership was actually known as Ellsworth and Company (city directories
and building permit records). - ‘ ' :

24 Building permit records make it clear that DMR first went into independent business as a contractor in early
1904 (see next two paragraphs). It appears that he was part of Ellsworth & Company from August 1902 until
the end of 1903, which is about 16 months. His account would lead one to believe that he decided to get out of
the firm by about February of 1903 (six months after August 1902), but this is too early. Apparently he
decided to leave by late 1903 and had to wait until early 1904 for his settlement. '

25 Apparently DMR is referring to Thomas Ellsworth, who was business manager of Ellsworth and Company -
until he “retired” in early 1904 (PES 5/6/04). . -~

26 Apparently 1904 (see earlier note).

27 Mrs. Fannie M. Rowland (1853-1936), wife of Dr. Francis F. Rowland. Dr. Rowland (1847-1922), a
physician, was a prominent Pasadena citizen of his era. He played a major role in founding the Tournament of
Roses (Scheid, p.81). (Reference obituaries for Dr. Rowland PSN 3/1 3/22 and Mrs. Rowland Pasadena Post
12/12/36:) The Rowlands built a new house at 55 S. Marengo in 1903 (BP 951, 10/1/03) that was designed by
Greene and Greene and constructed by Ellsworth and Company. Presumably Mrs. Rowland met DMR during
the course of this job and recommended him to William Parks. DMR handled the move of the Rowland house
to its present location at 225 W. State (BP 226A, 4/22/1 2). :

28 DMR leaves this hanging as to significance. But his first house under his own name as a contractor was 130
N. Grand Avenue for William Parks (BP 1314, 2/19/04). Parks, who sometimes listed his occupation as real
estate, lived there through 1911. The designer of this house is unknown. Gebhard and Winter, in Los Angeles,
An Architectural Guide (1994) describe the house as “an awkward but fascinating example of turn-of-the-
century Colonial Federal Revival." '
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* To begin with, I built a house29 and an eight-flat building3? on the corner of Raymond

and Walnut and was fortunate enough to make a few thousand dollars which was my first

start in life. But to my surprise, when we settled up with the [Ellsworth] company, it took
all T had to pay for my first experience as a partner. The other two partners continued, byt
at the end of the following year went broke.3!" Meantime, I was going on working hard and -

making a name as a builder, a profession which I was to follow all through my life 32

My first large job was the erection of the 60-inch Snow Telescope33 building at Mount
Wilson, the J. D. Hooker bungalow donated by Mr. Hooker, the Monastery3+ for housing the
.astronomy professors and a great many other buildings including the hotel and approximately

 thirty bungalows for the-Mount Wilson Toll Road Company.

29 Apparently the Parks house (see previous note).
-30 - N. Raymond,

.

: (31 Actually, Herbert Ellsworth and Samuel Upton continued Ellsworth and Company through 1907. DMR’s
time scale-is off, or perhaps they went bankrupt six months later but restarted. Apparently they ended their

‘Herbert Ellsworth was listed in the city directories of September 1909 and December 1910 as a building
contractor at 449 Mundell, and he built houses at 60 and 68 Pepper in late 1909 (BP 7775 and 7839). He was
absent from Pasadena directories from 1912 through 1917; he was a rancher at 44 Yale 1918-20. He lived at
245 E. Glenarm 1923-27, listing his occupation variously as real estate, building contractor, and carpenter.
Absent 1928-33, he was listed at 74 Pepper from 1934 through 1951. Herbert's mother Harriet and his
brother Alfred lived at 68 Pepper from 1915 through 1918, and then at 74 Pepper 1919-33. (Elmer Ellsworth
died at 68 Pepper, according to his obituary in PSN 11/29/ 1915.) Apparently Herbert took over the Pepper
‘Street property on the death of his mother. He died in 1963 (see earlier note).

- Samuel Upton continued independently in the building business from 1908 until his death in 1914 (see earlier
note). He apparently enjoyed a good reputation and he worked with noted architects such as Roehrig, Marston,
Hunt & Grey, Driscoll, and Hillman. Upton and his family lived at 295 W. Green (then called Howard Street)
in 1903, and DMR lived with them (city directories). Upton built a house for himself at 360 S. Lake in 1904
(BP 1461, 5/7/04). After several moves, he eventually settled at 931 N. Orange Grove from 1909 to 1914,
moving to 804 N. El Molino sometime in 1914. Just before his death, he became a foreman for contractor Fred
Stahlhuth. On October 13, 1914, he was accompanying Stahlhuth to the site of a large school contract that
Stahlhuth had in Van Nuys. Stahlhuth's car blew a tire and Upton was thrown out, receiving Otal blow to

the head.
Laa’DMR built 16 houses and __ business buildings in 1904-05. Three houses were designed by Greene and
* Greene and threee by Hunt and Grey, including Myron Hunt's own house at 200 N. Grand. (The association
with Hunt and Grey probably developed from the Mount Wilson observatory work, for which they were the
architects.) It is rather amazing that Renton was able to handle so many jobs in Pasadena at that time,
considering the magnitude of his Mount Wilson work. DMR apparently took pride in being a quality builder. In
an interview published in the Star News' Pen Pictures of Pasadenans series (3/7/1919), DMR stated that he
owed his success to having learned his trade under men who believed in doing a job right or not at all. “Such -
work may cost a few more dollars, but when finished you have a-product of which you can be proud and a client
who is satisfied and knows where to come if in the market agin,” he is quoted as saying.
32 The Snow was the earliest of several solar telescopes on Mount Wilson. DMR is confused regarding the size,
which was actually 24 inches at the largest mirror. 60 inches is the size of a later reflecting telescope, erected in
1908. The Snow Telescope was moved to Mount Wilson from the University of Chicago’s Yerkes Observatory.
The building was designed by Hunt and Grey. (- ). See Robinson, pp. 41-45.
34 Designed by Hunt and Grey (- ). : ‘
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Lumber for the job was all packed from the new trail35 up to the top of the mountain
by burros and mules.36 During the summer of 1904, we packed about 700,000. pounds—a lot
of material to pack with forty burros and twenty mules. The work was all done on a
percentage basis plus 10 per cent over and above cost.

When Professors George Ellery Hale, [George]3 Richey, Ferdinand Ellerman, Walter

S. Adams, ___ % Reese and a great many others who made up the observatory staff went

. to Mount Wilson, we all stayed in the old Casino.3% The first few nights, the snow blew in

through the open windows and it was real wiriter weather although just a few miles from the
orange groves—just a few miles below. ' :

The Casino was divided into small rooms with heavy paper for partitions.. The kitchen
was adjacent to the lobby with- its big cobblestone fireplace was enjoyed equally by the
professional men and the carpenters and laborers, mingling men from evefy walk of life.

The professors continued to use the Casino until the Monastery was completed on a -
spur of the mountain overlooking a chasm thousands of feet deep. The Casino was kept
‘thereafter for the workers of various trades. '

, To augment the work on the mountain top, a machine shop was built down in the
valley, in Pasadena—a structure of brick with wooden roof and eight-inch cement floor to
take care of all the heavy machines required for the erection of the telescope.  When these
were ready to move to the top, the road® was widened sufficiently to make room for
carrying up ‘the first sixty-inch*! mirror that was installed on- Mount Wilson.. It was
transported on a Swedish Saucer truck, the glass being placed under a number of heavy
springs to protect it from jarring.*2 Another large truck for safety traveled behind that which
bore the mirror to the Srow Telescope building where it reposes today as one of the early
monuments in scientific research to Professor Hale and his staff.

It required a great deal of capital to finance the venture. Professor Hale and a few
other interested capitalists were feeling the strain, and Professor Hale went back to
Washington where he was successful in getting the promise of $50,000 from the Carnegie
Institute. To celebrate, on his return, he packed two cases of champagne to Mount Wilson
by burro.43 :

N

. 35 This apparently was the route that eventually became the Mount Wilson Toll Road.

36 John Robinson's The San Gabriels (p. 43) contains photographs of pack trains going to Mount Wilson during
- construction of the Snow Telescope and other original buildings. These probably show DMR's pack trains.

37 DMR left this blank; see Robinson, p. 41..

38 DMR left this blank. .
39 The Casino building was a log cabin about 40 X 40 feet. See Robinson, pp. 39 and 43 (photographs).
40 Mount Wilson Toll Road.

41 Again, DMR is confused on the size. This was a 24 inch mirror (see earlier note).

42 Robinson (p. 43) shows photographs of the horse-drawn truck used to transport the telescope parts.
According to Robinson, who drew upon Observatory archives, the truck was designed by Professor Hale.

43 The facts regarding the financing of the original Mount Wilson observatory facilities differ slightly from
DMR's account. According to Robinson (p. 41-45), the original grant ($10,000) to move the Snow Telescope
to Mount Wilson was made by the Carnegie Institution in April 1904, prior to start of work. The move was to
. be temporary; however, Dr. Hale became convinced that this was a fine site for a permanent solar observatory,’
and he lobbied the Carnegie Institution for more funds. The trustees approved a $300,000 grant on December
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I started the erection of forty small houses and hotel for the Mount Wilson Toll Road
Company, officers and owners of which were William R. Staats, president;+ Howard Wright,
~ secretary; J. H. Holmes,* manager and treasurer. :

After making the plans, I rented a mill on Terminal Island, bought all the short lumber
in the yard, cut it up, numbered each piece, transported it to the top of the mountain and
erected the buildings where they stand today.#6 ' '

The first hotel was completed about 1904, close to Christmas. As it wis built of
lumber under eight feet,*” so cut because of the difficulty of packing it up the trail, the first
heavy snow brought danger of collapse under the added weight when the sun came out and
started to melt it. The snow was so-deep that you could walk onto the roof from the west

side, so we put men to work shoveling it off.

- My first place to sleep in Pasadena was at the home of Mr. [Thomas] Ellsworth on
Mundell Drive which he had purchased from Chief of Police Mundell. It was a large piece of
property bounded by Walnut Street and Orange Grove Avenue.48 Eventually it was divided
into a great many lots upon which are now built many finé homes.

Mr. [Thomas] Ellsworth was a good friend of the Ryder family,* who then lived on
Mary Street,50 a short distance from his place. In those days I was very bashful, and he was
much interested in having me meet Elizabeth Ryder.5! Down at the Ryder house, they had
plenty of peaches on their trees and Mr. [Thomas] Ellsworth wanted me to go down and pick
a sack, as they had invited him to help himself. But as I had never met them and knew them
only through the many good things I had heard Mrs. [Harriet] Ellsworth say about ther, I
decided I couldn’t walk in and pick their peaches, so [ bought a sack and took them home. .

20, 1904. DMR's account of the $50,000 grant may pertain to an interim grant prior to the final grant, or he
may be describing the final grant with an error in the amount. o

44 William R. Staats (1867-1 928) was a very successful Pasadena real estate man. Besides developing Mount.
Wilson, he played a leading role in the development of the exclusive Oak Knoll tract. An active outdoorsman,
he was an early member of the Sierra Club. His offices were in Los Angeles after 1905. (Obituary PSN
12/21/28; see also PSN 7/2/26 and 2/1/35.) . '

45 DMR has “J. H. Haines," but other sources are clear that this was John H. Holmes, who was also the manager ‘
of the hugely siiccessful Hotel Green in Pasadena (Robinson; PSN 7/7/15 and 6/ 16/28). This man should not
be confused with Henry J. Holmes, another early Pdsadenan (died 1892).

46 A photograph of the original Mount Wilson Hotel is shown in Robinson, p. 50. The building—a single-story,
clapboarded, hip-roofed proto-Craftsman with stone chimneys and large verandah—burned in 1913 and was
replaced by a larger one. The later hotel and the Renton bungalows have apparently all been demolished.

47 According to Robinson (p. 42), the structural members of the Snow Telescope building were also limited to
eight feet in length. Probably this was fairly standard for buildings constructed in remote locations serviced only
by pack train.

48 Addressed as 294 N. Orange Grove Avenue. Mundell Drive ran northwest from 421 W. Walnut to 300 N.
Orange Grove. Mundell was eliminated when later redevelopment brought the condominiums at Walnut and
Orange Grove. Probably the originil Ellsworth house was the only one on the east side of Orange Grove
between Walnut and Mundell when DMR arrived. (City directories and Sanborn maps.) -

49 The Ryder family was well known in early Pasadena. According to PSN 8/7/55, the first of the clan to come
to Pasadena were the three Ryder brothers, who arrived in 1887: Arthur Lincoln (7/29/1864-8/11/1942 per
1943 Pasadena Community Book), Fred Lincoln (7/9/1866-1/8/1947 per Mountain View), and Thomas J.
The three worked as carpenters at first; Tom continued as a contractor until he left Pasadena about 1898 (city
directories). Arthur and Fred entered partnership with Ed Braley in about 1890 to sell bicycles, and the two
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A Elizabeth was bookkeeper for her brother, A. L. (Arthur Lincoln) Ryder, who was
engaged in the bicycle business on East Colorado Street.52" We first met when | went in one
noon to buy a bicycle. A. L. was very nice to me and made a deal. I don’t recall how much |
paid down; perhaps $10, and the balance at so much per week.

I could see Elizabeth look out of the ¢orner of her eye, for she had heard a good dea]
about me through the Ellsworths. About that time, Arthur introduced me; and learning that
she had a very good bicycle, I invited her for g ride down the Bicycle Speedway which went
-.as far as Raymond Hill.53 That was how our courtship began. o

-Shortly, I bought my mill property down at 118 South Vernon Avenue among the
colored people, making a small payment down.5* On the propéerty was an old building
without any windows that had been used at one time as a tooth factory: I used the lower
portion for a workshop and mill; the upper part for sleeping quarters. :

brothers led the first Rose Parade in 1890 on high wheel Victorian bicycles, Fred, who does not enter DMR’s
story directly, retired from the bicycle business in about 1900. He was also a contractor and builder who put up
a number of houses as well as the Ryder Block (65-71 N. Fair Oaks). Fred was also a pioneer of Hermosa Beach
(obituary PSN 1/9/47). -

The'rest of the Ryder family jc.>ined the brothers in Pasadena in about 1895: parents Samuel H. and Maria C.

Ryder, and three Ryder sisters—Nancy, Elizabeth, and Evelyn. All of these enter DMR's story except Evelyn,
‘who eventually married Charles Griffin of Glendale, later a Nazarene minister in Los Angeles (PSN 8/7/55).

50 The Ryder héirie (as of 1902) was addressed as 153 N. Vernon Avenue according to city directories. This
was at the southwest corner of Mary Street and Vernon Avenue, with the long side of the lot extending along
Mary (Sanborn maps). Mary Street ran west from 153 N. Fair Oaks to a cul-du-sac at 365 (beyond Vernon); it
later disappeared as a result of the development of the [-210/710 freeways and the Parsons complex. According
to city directories, the Samuel Ryder family lived at 284 Cypress when they first arrived, later living at 507
Cypress (1897) and 161 N. Vernon (1900). They lived at Vernon and Mary through 1906. (See later note for

information on Vernon Avenue.)

51 Elizabeth Blaisdell Ryder (6/23/1879-9/30/1935 per Mountain View), the future Mrs. D. M. Renton. She
was born in Orrington, Maine, and came to Pasadena with her parents in 1895 at the age of 16. She was listed
in the Pasadena city directories of 1897 through 1905, always at her parents’ address. According to her obituary
(PSN 10/1/35), she attended Pasadena High School and was founder of the Pasadena State of Maine Society.
She was active in the Lincoln Avenue Methodist Episcopal Church and later the First Methodist Church. She -
was described as “one of the most beloved women in Avalon,” a founder of the first Boy Scout troop there, and
past ‘president of the women's club. The obituary stated that although the Rentons moved to Avalon in 1919,
Mrs. Renton “occupied her Pasadena apartment periodically” during the three years prior to her death in order
to be with her son Arthur, who was studying music in Pasadena. She died at the apartment, 361 S. Los Robles,
having been confined there for several months by an unnamed illness. . '

52 Elizabeth was shown in city directories as bookkeeper for A. ‘L. Ryder from 1900 through 1905. Arthur -

Ryder continued the Ryder brothers bicycle business on his.own from about 1900, His shop was at 125 E. .
Colorado 1900-05, which is the period that DMR is describing here. In 1906 he_ moved to 37 S. Broadway:

33 The cycleway, built by Horace M. Dobbins, opened on New Year's Day 1900. It was an elevated wooden
roadway that ran from near the Green Hotel in downtown Pasadena to Raymond Hill in South Pasadena.
Dobbins never fulfilled his intention of extending the cycleway to Los Angeles via the Arroyo Seco. (Apostol
PP. 45 and 109.) . : '

>* South Vernon Avenue was located where the stub of the Long Beach Freeway (I-710). now runs. . Vernon
- began at 255 W. Colorado and ran south to Del Mar and north to N. Orange Grove, intersecting at 466 N.
LN
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In thosé days we never locked énything. We’d let the hobos sleep in the hay with the
horses,‘ but tell them not to smoke.55 . .

Some of the men that worked for me were stopping up with Mrs. Ryder’¢ and, of
course, they knew every time [ went up to see Elizabeth. A good many times, Father Ryder5?
would talk all evening to me and she didn’t know whether [ had come to see her or Daddy. .
Mother Ryder (Maria.Cocheran Blaisdell)58 was a dear and always made me very much at
home; and Nan,% Ruth’s mother,% was always my friend. Even in comparison to the other
admirers, Nan thought | was the one for Elizabeth; while Susie (A. L. Ryder’s wife) thought

" Elizabeth should get a professional man or one with more money.

But Elizabeth had faith in me and I in her and one night I got courage to ask her. She
said I would have to ask Father (Samuel Hall) Ryder. I did. He told me he didn't know
anything about it; to ask Mother Ryder, which I did, and she said, “Yes.” All the while,
Elizabeth was playing the piano. .

Orange Grove (opposite Prospect Boulevard). Renton's property was south of Green Street, between now-
defunct streets named Camden and Grove (city directories). The Union Pacific Railroad tracks ran just to the
east of South Vernon (between Vernon and Pasadena Avenue), so commercial and manufacturing uses were
common. However, there were also many houses in that section (Sanborn maps and building permits). The
neighborhood was an early area of African-American settlement in Pasadena, according-to a city report
compiled by Carson Anderson. Apparently minorities settled there because of low prices near the railroad
combined with the proximity to the mansions of “Millionaire’s Row" (South Orange Grove Avenue), where
many were employed as servants in those early days of limited opportunities. As for DMR's mill property, by
the late 1920s it had been incorporated into the Crown City Manufacturing Company, a large planing mill
which was just north of DMR's. A huge lumber shed covered Renton’s site (Sanborn'maps).

55 Since DMR's mill was directly adjacent to.the Union Pacific tracks, hobos were probably not uncommon.
56 “Stopping up with Mrs. Ryder"—apparently Mrs. Maria Ryder took in boarders.

57 Samuel Hall Ryder (1837-1/4/1921 per Mountain View) was a house and sign painter. As mentioned
earlier, he came to Pasadena in 1895 with his wife and three daughters, following his three sons. Samuel was
known as “Captain Ryder" (PSN 8/7/55). He apparently retired from painting in 1914 at thé age of 77 (city
directories). : . : : B

58 Maria Cocheran Blaisdell Ryder (1840-1/6/1934 per Mountain View).

59 Nancy May Ryder Billheimer (1873-7/4/1907 per Mountain View), Elizabeth's sister. She married Clark D.
Billheimer (1874-1954), a salesman who had come to Pasadena in 1892 (obituary in PSN 7/30/54). It appears -

* that the Billheimers were married about 1898 or 99, since Nancy is listed separately under her maiden narne in
the 1895 and 1897 directories, while Clark Billheimer is listed at the same address as Samuel Ryder in 1900 and

. 1903. The Billheimers moved to 512 Lincoln in 1904. In 1905, they moved to a new house constructed for
them by Nancy's brother Fred Ryder at 325 W. Walnut Street (BP 2545, 4/26/05). This house was on the
northeast corner of Walnut and Rosemont (Sanborn maps). Nancy died there according to her obituaries (PS
and PDN 7/5/07), which do not give the reason for her early death, stating orily that she “had been ill for some °
time.” She left two children. Clark Billheimer later remarried and moved to South Pasadena, eventually
becoming head of Model Grocery Company, Pasadena’s most noted early market (PSN 8/7/. 55).

60 Ruth Billheéimer, one of Nancy's two children, was the society editor of the Pasadena Star News at the time

of Clark Billheimer's death in 1954. She was the author of a PSN piece on Malcolm Renton's retirement in
1975. : :
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We [got]6! married on the twenty-fourth of May®2 at Nan’s house (corner of Walnut
and Rosemont Avenue®), and all the family were present including Mother (Renton), Sadie,
Minnie, Edith, Joe and Will (the latter two never married).6* We went to Santa Barbara for
our honeymoon and were gone about a week. As my bank account was not very prosperous,
we came back a few days before we had planned to and I think I even had to borrow a little
of her money to get back, as my money was all in my little business and I had to meet my
payroll. :

~ Our honeymoon house was at Winona and Walnut.55 We had some furniture that |
had bought including a rug, a few chairs, and Elizabeth’s bedroom: set that she had in her
room on Mary Street. ~ : ‘

61 DMR wrote “planned to get” married, but the remainder of the séntence is in the past tense.
62 1906, according to Elizabeth's obituary (PSN 10/ 1/35). , ,
63 Addressed as 325 W. Walnut Street. This is where Walnut crosses the present [-210 Freeway.

64 Sadie, Minnie, Edith, Joe, and Will were DMR's siblings; an earlier note covers Will DMR'’s family followed
- him to Pasadena, where Catherine (Mother Renton), Sadie, Minnie, Edith, and Will were all shown as residents _
of 120 S. Vernon Avenue in 1906. DMR himself was also listed at the same address that year. DMR’s office
was addressed as 112 S. Vernon (next door) at the time, which was presumably where the yard and shop were.
DMR built two five-room cottages at 120-122 S. Vernon in late 1905, listing William Renton as the owner on
the building permit (3242, 10/19/05). Probably these inexpensive cottages ($800 each) were built to house the
family, so 1905 appears to be the year of their arrival. Catherine, Edith, Minnie, and Will all continued to live .
at 122 S. Vernon through 1912, the year of Will's death. Catherine and the three sisters lived at 40 Dayton in
1913. In 1914 (apparently), Sadie married Miles E. Nickles, who operated a restaurant at 177 N. Fair Oaks.
Catherine, Edith, and Minnie then resided with the Nickles, first at 764 Summit (1914-17) and then at 1241 E.
Villa (1917-18). Edith was listed in 1918 as manager of M. E. Nickles Creamery at 23 S. Raymond. All of the .
Renton and Nickles families (except DMR) were absent in city directories after 1918. As. previously noted,
Catherine Renton died in 1930. DMR's obituary (PSN 5/28/47) listed three sisters among his survivors: Mrs.
Sadie Nickles of Los Angeles, Mrs. Minnie Wentworth of San Pedro, and Mrs. Edith Allen of Petaluma. Joseph
Renton (June 1880-12/27/1906 per Mountain View) was never listed in Pasadena city directories, but his
obituaries (PS & PDN 12/28/06) said that he died at 120 S. Vernon after living in Pasadena about a year. The
reason for his death at age 26 was not given, but hewas said to have come to Pasadena for his health. The
obituaries stated that his mother, three sisters, and two brothers all lived in Pasadena. DMR states that he was
one of seven children, but the seventh does not appear in any records thus far found. Perhaps the other sibling
died at any early age. : :

85 Winona and Walnut would have been about 110 W. Walnut. * This area was all redeveloped in.conjunction
with the [-210 Freeway in the 1970s. - '
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Before long I got a contract to build twenty or more houses at West Newport66.around
a pool. I took her along and, to keep her company while I was busy, we took Vinie
(Martha[?]) Griffin (Mrs. Munger).” When we returned to Pasadena, we moved to West
Walnut (facing Rosemont Avenue) to be near Mother Ryder®® and the following year
(January 16, 1908), Malcolm was born.70 ' '

I started to build and sell houses in the Orange Heights tract’! and was successful,
We moved up to North Madison and lived in the garage until the house was finished. Then
we sold the house. We kept on building and moving? until I accumulated enough ahead to
furnish the house on Galena [North Oakland]7 where Arthur was born (June 19, 1912).7+

66 Apparently West Newport, Rhode Island. The genesis of this contract is unknown; but it should be born in -
mind that DMR was familiar with New England and that many Easterners wintered in Pasadena in those days.
Perhaps DMR met a wealthy Eastern capitalist and landed this job. Building permits show a long gap in DMR’s
residential jobs between August 1906 and March 1907, making this the probable time of the West Newport job.
This is corroborated by DMR's statement that Malcolm was born the following year.

67 Elizabeth’s sister Evelyn married Charles Griffin, as mentioned in an earlier note. It seems likely that the
person referred to here was a daughter of Evelyn and thus Elizabeth’s niece. The parenthetical given name is
-provided in a handwritten correction to DMR’s typescript, illegible in the copy available to the editor.

68 1907, based on the subsequent reference to Malcolm’s birth..

69 DMR’s address is shown as 340 W. Walnut Street in the September 1908 city directory. This house faced
the termination of Rosemont at Walnut (Sanborn maps). Samuel and Maria Ryder moved to 250 Rosemont in
about 1907 per city directories. This was next door to (north of) 325 W. Walnut, where Clark and Nancy.
Billheimer (Elizabeth'’s sister) resided. DMR's residence was listed as 325 W. Walnut in the 1907 city directory,
published in September. This seems to indicate that DMR and Elizabeth may have moved into the Billheimer
household when they returned to Pasadena in-about March 1907, perhaps to assist Clark Billheimer with the
children during the beginning of Nancy Billheimer's fatal illness. At any rate, it appears that the Rentons were
living with Clark Billheimer following Nancy's death in July. They apparently moved to 340 W. Walnut in late
- 1907, just in time for Malcolm’s birth.

70 Malcolm J. Renton followed in his father's footsteps as an official of the Santa Catalina Island (SCI)
Company. According to a PSN article of 1975 (Pasadena Library Biography Notebooks), he graduated from
Pasadena City College and then (1929) from Stanford University. He became DMR's assistant after
graduation, continuing with SCI Co. after DMR retired in 1936. He was Vice-President and Secretary of SCI
from about 1947 until his retirement in 1975. His retirement plans included splitting his time between his
homes in Avalon and Palm Springs, and his ranch in Atascadero (which he inherited from DMR). Malcolm’s
son, David M. Renton II, lived in Old Greenwich, Connecticut, as of the late 1970s, and had two sons, David -
M. Renton HII and Phillip Renton. -

71 Orange Heights was subdivided in November 1905 by George F. Thompson. The tract consisted of the land
bordered by East Mountain Street, North El Molino Avenue, Jackson Street, and North Los Robles Avenue.
The primary interior streets are North Oakland Avenue (originally Ruby, then Galena), North Madison Avenue,
Herbert Street, and Thompson Drive. The north side of Jackson was in the Barnhart Tract of 1887 but was
mostly developed along with Thompson's tract, beginning in 1906. DMR apparently bought a number of lots in
the Orange Heights area in about 1908 and began to build houses. A circa 1911 photograph in the City's
Meriwether files (supplied by the Renton family) shows DMR standing behind a truck with a large sign reading
“RENTON's SUB DIVISION—THE GROWING NORTH EAST SECTION—HAVE You SEEN IT?" (This sign may
refer to Orange Heights or possibly to the Nazarene University Tract.) The addresses and building permit dates-
for DMR's Orange Heights houses were as follows: 949 N. Oakland (10/23/08); 935 and 945 N. Oakland
(12/10/08); 999 N. Madison and 990 N. Oakland (8/26/09); 577 Jackson (7/11/ 10); 949.N. Madison
(11/23/10); 589 Jackson and 959 N. Madison (12/23/10); 567 Jackson and 990 N. Madison (6/2/11); 540
Jackson (7/22/11); 919 N. Madison and 1006 N. Oakland (9/14/11); 1015 N. Oakland (4/10/13); 528-532
Thompson (7/9/13); and 555 Jackson (8/5/1 5). ' S

72 In this period, city directories listed DMR’s addresses as follows: September 1908,. 340 W. Walnut;
September 1909, 122 S. Vernon; December 1910 (“19117), no residence listed (business address only);
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I also did ‘considerable building for the Nazarenes on their tract (North Hill near
Washington Street).”s The preacher’ was a good salesman and got me to buy thirty lots on
payment.?” Hard times hit suddenly and sixty days later they had to have their money, as the
bank from which they had borrowed was pressing them. I had to borrow from the bank and
take a certain amount out of my business. Elizabeth thought I was crazy when | told her
about it.

The panic of 1907 was so bad that everything was tied up. I got the contract to build
Arthur Ryder’s house (432 S. Los Robles Avenue); and his money was tied up t00.78 The
banks were issuing scrip. [ had all those lots plus quite a few more with street work taxes
coming due, and no business. [ had a lot of lumber in the yard, but could not sell any lots,
although there was'some sale for houses. I built most of the houses on Jackson Street? and
Dr. Fraser,8 who handled the Landreth- Estate,8! told me anytime I needed money for
building to see him. [ tried every place and came home one night very much discouraged.

December 1911 (“1912"), 875 N. Euclid; April 1913, 1006 N. Oakland. The obituaries for William Renton in
February 1912 state that DMR was living at 1006 N. Oakland at the time. The lack of a residence address in
the 1911 directory could be as a result of his living in temporary quarters in a garage. 875 N. Euclid was not
built by DMR .and was probably a rental. 1006 N. Oakland was built by DMR in late 1911 (BP 10211,
9/14/11). (Interestingly, DMR lived mostly in houses built by others, the only exceptions being 120-122 S.
Vernon and 1006 N. Oakland.) Allin all, it appears that DMR and his wife and small son went through a short
period of moving from garage to garage, probably sometime between late 1909 and late 1911. -

73 1006 N. Oakland Avenue (see previous note).

74 Arthur Lincoln Renton died 10/30/1979 in Atascadero, where he had lived since 1955, According to his
obituary (PSN 11/7/79), he was a well known tenor who appeared on radio and on the stage in concert, opera,
and light opera. He grew up in Avalori and attended Pomona College. He studied voice in Pasadena with Alan
Ray Carpenter in the mid-1930s before beginning his singing career. After serving with the Air Force in Europe
“during World War I, he studied at the Royal Conservatory of Music in Glasgow and later studied opera in
Milan. After a concert tour of Western Europe, he returned to the US, singing in concert in all the western
states. He operated a music store in Atascadero from about 1955 to 1965, later running a travel service there.

He is buried at Mountain View Cemetery. His daughter, Elizabeth Miller, lived in Atascadero at the time of his
death. ’ o

75 Nazarene University Tract, bounded b); Washington, Hill, Whitefield, and , was subdivided »

in about 1911. Only the lots on Hill were within the City of Pasadena, so City building and tax records do not
cover the entire tract in DMR's period. S '

76 Possibly Dr. Phineas F. Bresee, founder of the Church of the Nazarene (in 1895) and the Nazarene
University. The university moved to Pasadena in 191 O; later known as Pasadena College, it moved to San Diego

- in the 1970s. (Apostol p. 243; Scheid p. 110.)

77 Early city tax records show DMR as owning 28 lots on North Hill Avenue from Washington Boulevard to
Whitefield Road. DMR built 10 houses on Hill, selling the other lots without improvements.

78 Arthur Ryder's house at 432 S. Los Robles Avenue was designed by noted architect Frederick L. Roehrig. It
was a Craftsman chalet in the classic mode; photographs of it are preserved in the PDN Tournament of Roses
edition for 1911 and in photo # H-37-15, both at the Pasadena Historical Museum. The building permit (BP
5815) was issued on 10/11/07 for a $6,500 eight-room house with Renton as the contractor.

79 There is some confusion regarding chronology here. DMR .did not begin to build the houses on Jackson
Street until 1910, so the reference seems to be out of place. Or, recollections of a later panic may be mixed in
here (see later notes). ‘ :

80 Dr. Alex C: Fraser first appears in Pasadena city directories in April 1913 ‘at 567 Jackson, the house that
DMR built for him (BP 9858, 6/2/11). He listed his occupation as physician in most years. His widow, Ida, is
shown at the Jackson address starting in 1919. It is possible that he wintered in Pasadena in earlier years. The
editor has not yet found any records clarifying his connection with the Landreth estate. Assuming that DMR’s
memory is correct and that Dr. Fraser did provide the money to get DMR over the 1907 panic, then perhaps
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1 didn’f want to tell Elizabeth I was about busted, but I did. She said, “I told yoﬁ so.”

Next day, after thinking the whole thing over, | thought if I could borrow some more money
and turn the lumber in the yard into money, that was ‘my only chance.

I went to see Dr. Fraser and laid my cards on the table, He said I was in bad shape,

and asked me how much money | would need. I thought T would ask enough, so told him
“About $50,000.” o

All he said was, “You don’t need it all now?” And I told him, “Just so I can get it.”

I started building. Labor was cheap and I had lumberin the yard. I put up some
twenty-five houses$? and sold them as low as $300 to $1,000 down. This saved my life.
Money got easier and | was able to get larger loans. I sold the mortgage and got my little
bonus.# In six months T was all out of debt and it certainly made me feel good, The
depression was over and things started to pick up.

the earlier reference to building the houses on Jackson Street arose from DMR's mental association of Fraser
with Jackson Street. At any rate, nothing has turned up to date to explain DMR's connection to Fraser or the
Landreth family before 1911. Another possibility is that there was another panic in 1912 and that DMR's notes
have the panics mixed. His statements about owning the lots in the Nazarene University Tract tend to support
this possibility, since the tract was not subdivided until 1911 and DMR built his first house there in 1912.

81 “Landreth Estate” apparently refers to the assets of Albert Landreth, whose widow Annie F. Landreth first
appears in city directories in 1906. So far, little has been found concernin g the origins of this family and its

, th. According to city directories, Mrs. Landreth lived at 357 N. Oak 4nd }906-08, moving to 25 Ford Place
- Oakland) by 1909. Ford Place was an enclave of the wealthy at (hdifne. ‘ Mrs. Landreth commissioned
ansion at 1385 Hillcrest in 1916 (BP 6776A, 3/27/1 6) designed by R¥gifiald D. Johnson and built by DMR,"

again illustrating the family’s means as well as their connection with Renton. Mrs.. Landreth'’s son Harold B.
Landreth (1891-1948) lived with her during this period, according to city directories. _He later became a judge
of the Superior Court. His obituary (PSN 12/27/48) says that was born in Wisconsin, came to Pasadena in
1899, graduated from Pasadena High in 1908, obtained his undergraduate degree at Occidental in 1912 (ihere

. he was a football star), received his J. D. from Stanford in 1915, and practiced law in Pasadena. He was
appointed to the Los Angeles Municipal Court in 1932 and the Superior Court in about 1942. All of this tends

. to reinforce the picture of the Landreth family as a wealthy family with connections to Pasadena prior to 1907.

" (A curious sidelight concerns another appérent family member, Harry W. Landreth, who seems to have come to
Pasadena in 1915. DMR built a home for him at 555 Jackson (BP 5743A, 8/5/15) near Dr. Fraser's home.

However, despite the family’s wealth, Harry was living at the YMCA by 1918, \where he lived until he
disappeared from: directories in 1923) .

82 Pasadena city building records cannot account for the 25 houses, which could have been outside of the city.
In fact, city records show that DMR built no houses within the city limits from 10/11/07 (when the Arthur
Ryder permit was issued) until 8/29/08, when the permit was issued for a bungalow at 1896 N. Fair Oaks. This
certainly illustrates the 1907-08 depression but fails to shed light on- DMR's account of his recovery. If, as
speculated earlier, some of DMR's recollections pertain to a panic in 1912, then the record matches more

closely. 1913 was DMR’s biggest year in Pasadena by far, with 14 houses between February and August of
1913. '

8 “My little bonus"—the meaning of this phrase is unknown. Perhaps it refers to an interest rebate for early

repayment. The mortgage referred to seems to be the loan from Dr..Fraser, but this is not completely clear,
either. 3
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William Wrigley, Jr., 8¢ bought the ‘house at 391 South Orange Grove Avenue8s ip
[1914]% and was anxious to have a Turkish bath put in his basement. The contractor that.
built the house$” wanted thirty days to complete the job, but as Mr. Wrigley was only
spending thirty days in California, time was important and his secretary asked me to give a
figure. Isized the whole thing up and told him I would complete it in twelve days.

The secretary was a little worried, for Mr. Wrigley was 2 man of action and he knew
twelve days meant twelve days. I got busy and made my plans and although I had to move a
great lot of plumbing, put in a dressing room, rub room, steam room with steam boiler, tile
walls and ceiling and rubbing slabs, I completed the job in eight days.s8

Mr. Wrigley was very much pleased and had all his friends down to show them what
was accomplished in eight days. '

He asked me to make up plans for a seven-room house on Arbor Street, also an office
and chauffeur’s quarters. I made up the plans in one day and showed him the layout next
morning. He asked if it would look as well as anything on Arbor Street. I said yes and he
asked me the price, and how long it would take to complete it. [ told him forty-five days and
did the job'in forty-two. That pleased him. He liked my work and action.89

8 William Wrigley, Junior (1861-1932), was the self-made millionaire entrepreneur who headed the Wrigley
chewing gum empire and controlled the Chicago Cubs baseball team. Wrigley was born in Ohio, but his father
moved to Philadelphia and went into soap manufacturing; young William was a salesman by the age of nine.
Wrigley married in 1885 and migrated to Chicago in 1891. He sold scouring powder and baking soda, using
chewing gum as a premium. The gum became hugely popular, and he bought out the gum supplier in 1911 , by
which time his success was well established. Note that he was 50 years of age by the time that he became one
of the ultra-rich. He acquired a controlling interest in the Chicago Cubs in about 1916, and he persuaded the
club to move their spring training to Pasadena in 1917 (later this was changed to Catalina). He also owned the
old &%g,eles Angels of the Pacific Coast League. In addition to his Pasadena mansion, Wrigley owned homes
i icago; Lake Geneva, Wisconsin; and Phoenix. (Obituary PSN 1/26/32; PSN 1/3/63). Architectural buffs
will be interested in Wrigley's connection to the Arizona Biltmore Hotel in Phoenix, a site “partially” designed
by Frank Lloyd Wright. The hotel and cottages were built in 1928-29, with Albert C. McArthur the architect of
record. Wright consulted on the job and supplied many ideas and details. Wrigley was one of a number of
investors, but he owned the property outright by late 1929. Wrigley died at the hotel, which was near La
Colina Solana (designed by Earl Heitschmidt), his Phoenix home. The hotel and surrotinding estates stayed in
the Wrigley family until 1973, guided by Phillip K. Wrigley, William's son (Storrer, p. 226-229).

85 G. Lawrence Stimson Company built 391 South Orange Grove for George W. Stimson, the builder’s father.
The permit (BP 8556) was issued in 1910; however, the house was not completed until 1914, according to
~information given out by docents at the Wrigley Mansion. Wrigley's widow, Ada, ¢ ntinugd to use the hoyise
 after William's death. Following a stroke, Mrs. Wrigley was in a coma at the housqf%?ecem o/ 1947 intt
her death (obituary PSN 12/16/58). The Wrigleys’ son Phillip donated the house to the Tournament of Roses
in 1959, and it continues to serve as their headquarters as of 1995. ) . ]

86 DMR’s typescript has the year as 1919, but all other records show that this was 1914 (building permits,
Wrigley Mansion scripts, tax records, etc.). . -

87 G. Lawrence Stimson. .
- 8pp - , ___, 1914, add Turkish bath in basement, $ .

8 These buildings on Arbor Street remain as of 1995. The house is addressed as 488 Arbor (BP 65224, 2/1/16,
5 room house, $3,250). The office and chauffeur's quarters building is in the rear (492 Arbor, BP 6523A,
2/1/16, 3 rooms, $1,800). Both buildings are stucco-surfaced colonial-Craftsman bungalows. The front house
was the residence of Albert [. Conrad, Wrigley's resident gardener (city directory, 1919; see later note).
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My next job for Mr. Wrigley was building a two-story house and garage for his
secretary, Jack Reidy, and | made record time on it.9 Next I was to make plans for
landscaping 391 South Orange Grove. When he asked me if I had ever done any work of
that kind, I said yes. It seems he had had a landscape architect working on plans for months,
What he wanted was an Italian garden that would cost about $50,000.

In the morning, I brought my plan which was to run a pergola from Arbor Street, with
a tea house toward the house which would connect it with 391. He likéd my plan and told
me to consult Albert Conrad, who was the gardener at that time.9! We moved some trees
and changed the grounds to conform with the pergola. It made a pleasing piece of
landscaping which was photographed by many tourists and by newspapers and magazines.92
Mr. Wrigley was well pleased. : : T '

In the meantime, he had bought Santa Catalina Island in 1919 from the Banning
Company along with Blankenhorn and Hunter Company. David Blankenhorn,% who had
sold him some bonds the year before, made the sale. He put the proposition up to Mr.
- Wrigley when W. W. arrived at the Santa Fe station.% Mr. Wrigley said, “If you sell my

bonds, I'll take the one-third interest without seeing it."95 '

Two weeks later, Mr. Wrigley sent Albert Conrad after me. When I went to see him,
he told me he had bought Catalina and wanted me to go over with him Saturday. That was '
early February, 1919. S : '

As we drew near the Island aboard the old Hermosa, Mr. Wrigley remarked, “I didn’t
know I'd bought a rock out in the ocean.” We docked at the Hotel St. Catherine pier with

. 99 No record has been found of the Reidy house. Likewise, no one by that name appears in Pasadena city
directories of the period. Perhaps the house was in South Pasadena orSierra Madre, which had their own
directories by this time. Or, the name may be misspelled. :

91 Albert I. Conrad had a career with parallels to DMR’s. - According to a newspaper article dealing with his-
retirement (PSN 6/3/50), he came to Pasadena in 1900, apparently as a child He took up landscape gardening
and was used by the Stimsons to lay out the grounds of the Stimson-built mansions on South Orange Grove.
When William Wrigley asked George W. Stimson to recommend a good gardener, Conrad was named. Conrad
became the resident groundskeeper when the Wrigleys went east in the summer (see earlier note). Like DMR,
- he followed Wrigley to Avalon, landscaping Santa Catalina Island as development went forward. He selected
the site of Mount Ada (Wrigley's Avalon home, noted for its siting) and laid out the Chicago Cubs training field.
He retired to Hawaii in 1950, leaving “an executive position” with the Santa Catalina Island Company, where
he was “one of the key advisors of W rigley and his top man, Renton.” '

92 The arbor and teahouse are still part of the Wrigley Mansion grounds. Landscaping permit

93 David Ferguson Blankenhorn (1886-1969) was a noted Pasadena and Los Angeles real estate and investment
broker. " His father was Louis Blankenhorn, an official of the Chicago, Milwaukee and St. Paul Railroad. David
was born in Pasadena and attended area schools. He founded his real estate firm in 1908 at the age of only 22
and was immediately successful. In 1914 he formed the Blankenhorn-Hunter Company with Robert E. Hunter,
using offices at 130 E. Colorado. After serving in the army (stateside) during WW1, he returned to his
brokerage. The Santa Catalina Island sale, which Blankenhorn made at the age of 33, was described in a 1926
newspaper article (PSN 7/28/26) as_“probably the largest real estate transaction in the history of California.”
The selling price was about $2,900,000 (PSN 4713/77). By 1921 he was again operating a, firm under his own
name. In the late 1920s he became associated with the Santa Barbara Biltmore Hotel. Blankenhorn was
regarded as “a business genius” by contemporaries. ‘

94 Op Raymond Avenue, Pasadena.
95 Although Wrigley was often referred to as the owner of Santa Catalina, .he was in reality the controlling
interest in a syndicate that included the Banning family, who were the owners up to that time. '
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Captain Morse on the bridge, Captain Tom Black, first offiéer, and a party of about 200,
After we'd had lunch, Mr. Wrigley asked me to look the town over, which took mé about ap
hour. : '

Avalon in those days was a comic opera town with a few crude buildings, lots of big

signs and plenty of mud. S :

. . . DBanning and Blankenhorn, Everett Seaver and Captain Banning were partial ‘to the
Milwaukee Building Company9 for putting up the necessary buildings and houses. But I had
the Big Chief along with me. It was arranged that plans for different types of houses be
drawn up and ready for consideration Wednesday morning at ten o’clock, in the company
offices. I had quite a few plans and elevations made up by different artists which pleased Mr.
Wrigley.97 He went through the offices calling Captain Banning to see D. M.’s sketches.

.Ten o’clock came and Meyer,% who was architect for the Hotel St. Catherine,® did
not show up. Mr. Wrigley was getting out of patience. Finally he put on his hat at eleven
o’clock, just as Meyer came in. :

“Why Mr. Wrigley, I have some fine plans here I would like to have you look:at, " he
said. ' o : ' : :

“Ten o’clock is ten o’clock with me,” said Mr. Wrigley, and went out the door.

They finally decided on two of Meyer’s plans and eighty of mine (Descanso Avenue).
We started to build.!10 Bishop!®! was in charge of sales and Milton Patrick was one of the
one hundred percent salesmen. They sold the houses faster than we could build them and by
the latter part of August, the eighty houses were completed. All but ten were sold. Only

96 Milwaukee Building Company was one of Los Angeles’s most successful designing and contracting firms of
the 1900-1940 period. The company worked all across Southern California. Notable Pasadena houses by
* Milwaukee in the Craftsman period include the Ledyard House (1361 Ridge Way) and the Caunt.House (1315
S. Oakland). The principals were Mendel Meyer (President) and Phillip W. Holler (Vice President). In the
early 1920s, the firm changed its name to Meyer and Holler. They were noted for their exuberant commercial
designs in the 1920s, particularly Grauman's Chinese and Egyptian theaters in Hollywood. (LA city directories;
BPs; Gebhard and Winter.) . : ’

97 Probably DMR means draftsmen or délineators in his reference to artists. Renton apparently employed an
unknown number of drafting staff in his designing and contracting business in Pasadena. Existing plans for a
1914 house (965 N. Holliston, in the owner's possession) bear the initials. of an unknown draftsman along with
.a line reading “Designed by D. M. Renton." Many of the designs from Renton's firm show common traits going
back to DMR's beginnings as a contractor, implying that he developed his own early designs and maintained an

active role in design in later years. Presumably he worked. with his drafting staff to develop ideas for the
Catalina plans.

99 In Avalon (see DMR’s earlier paragraph about docking at the Hotel St. Catherine pier).

100 Apparently this was still early 1919, the selection process having been very rapid. According to the PSN of

3/1/1919, Renton “[will] do most of the construction work for the Santa Catalina Island Company....Mr.
Wrigley has given him first chance at the island construction work. Mr. Renton operates his own mill and
expects in the near future to take over two more, one at Wilmington and one at Avalon.” That article added:
“Fond of fishing and hunting, Mr. Renton has found little time for sport the last few years, but hopes to take a
few days off and leain the island game very soon now."

98 Mendel Meyer, president of the Milwaukee Building Company (m-isspelled as “Myer” in DMR's typescript).

101_ No information has been found regarding Mr. Bishop.
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one of the two stucco housés sold.192 The other was traded for an old kélp cutter and barge.
The painters went out on a strike—then the carpenters and all the mechanics. -David
Blankenhorn only wanted to build forty houses, but we had the lumber piled up on the

streets and | told him we would build the eighty. I only had two or three punk carpenters. I

put in a cut and rip saw; made templates and by the end of thirty days we had the strike
broken.

We then hired two hundred and fifty soldlers and sailors. Three days after, we had to

- fire one hundred and fifty and ship them back on the boat. This was a hard job and I had to
be careful in case they should mob me. Anyhow, we did in the neighborhood of $850,000

‘worth of all kinds of construction. :

At the time, David Blankenhorn was president of the Santa Catalina Island Company
and Everett Seaver was the operating manager. Everything was in awful shape. The fresh
water condition was critical, and on July 4th, the town ran out of fresh water. They had to
turn.on the salt water in the fresh water lines, which made the Blankenhorn family and
himself sick and very much disgusted with the manager. He [Blankenhorn] wired me to
meet him at eight o’clock at his home in Pasadena.193 He told me that I would have to take
. over the management. He told me he would not take a million dollars and have William

- Wrigley see the conditions.

I told him I'would come over and take charge JUSt until Mr. ergley came out from
Chicago. When he did arrive, the very next day he went to the Santa Catalina Island
Company offices in Los Angeles and made me Vice President and General Manager of all the
‘Catalina companies, which office I have held through the years until February 11, 1936.104

Mr. Wrigley was like a big brother to me and shared with me many things which he |
bought for himself. He told me I stood next to his family, which I considered quite a.
_compliment. -

102 Thjs sentence is amblguous Does DMR mean that only 1 of the 2 houses built by Milwaukee sold? Or that -
2 of his own 80 were stucco, and only 1 sold? The competltwe tone of the story tends to favor the first
interpretation.

103 Assuming this was in the summer of 1919, Blankenhorn was living at 670 St. John Avenue, designed for him -
in 1913 by Reginald D. Johnson..

" - 104 DMR's obituary (PSN 5/28/47) confirms that he retired as Vice-President and General Manager of the’
Santa Catalina Island Company in 1936 at the age of 58, although he remained a directér of the company until
his death on May 27, 1947. His wife Elizabeth had died the year before his retirement (see earlier notes), .
although he does not mention it. He married Isabel Cline (10/4/1894-6/6/1967 per Mountain View) of
Kenilworth, llinois on May 29, 1937. His obituary says that he spent most of the last 8 years of his life at a
ranch he purchased in Atascadero after his retirement. He had returned to Pasadena in November 1946, where
he “was confined to Huntmgton Memorial Hospital for many weeks” due to “a heart ailment with which he was
afflicted for the past six years.” He was later moved to his apartment at 361 S. Los Robles, where he died. This
was the same apartment in which Elizabeth had died in 1935. :
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During my work with him through the last years of his wonderful life, we built the
Casino, 105 the Country Club, the William Wrigley homel!06 and the P. K. Wrigley!®” residence
which was our home for ten months, the D. M. Renton home (next to PKW residence) and
most of the other homes in Avalon that have made it what it is. 108

We built the roads, the gas and electric plants, found and developéd the water. We
took over the rock plant from Graham Brothers at Pebble Beach and put it in the black
within fifteen days. The quarry grossed three million or more. :

We found clay on the islind from which we made all our brick, tile and hollow tile,
not to mention the pottery and we created a demand for the pottery that has advertised
Catalina far more than it was given credit for.

Also we found minerals—lead, silver, zinc and copper—that made Mr. Wrigley proud
and we mined $250,000 worth of lead, silver and zinc, quitting only when the price went
down where we could not make any money (the start of the depression of 1929). But the
- development of roads, power and light in the desolate part of the island where the mines
were located helped to make Catalina what it is today.

My greatest job of all, although the saddest of my construction career, was building
the memorial'® for my pal, William Wrigley, Jr. I felt honored and I knew he would say, in
his characteristic way, as he had so many times before, “I want my D. M. to build it. No one ‘
ties a tin can on our D. M."110 »

LXS

105 Avalon Casino was built in 1928 to the designs of Walter Webber and Sumner Spaulding (Gebhard and
Winter, 1994, p. 59). ’
106 William Wrigley's home, known as Mount Ada (after his wife), was built in 1921 to DMR’s designs.
Gebhard and Winter (1994, p. 59) describe it as “more of a curiosity than a work of architecture...mildly Anglo-
Colonial Revival....Its real plus is its wonderful orientation towards magnificent views.” (Keep in mind that G &
W are writing for the cognoscenti.) Albert Conrad, mentioned earlier by DMR, was the landscape architect for
Mount Ada. ) ‘ .
107 Phillip K. Wrigley (1894-1977) was William's son. Phillip served in the Navy in WWT1 and was nominally
elevated to President of Wrigley's holdings in 1923; however, he really assumed full control only after William's
death. In 1974, Phillip turned over about 83% of Santa Catalina to. the Catalina Island Conservancy, a non-
. profit foundation (obituary PSN 4/12/77; PSN 4/1 3/77). To date, no information has been found on his house.

108 Gebhard and Winter (1994, p. 59) recommend seeing the row of Spanish Colonial Revival cottages put up |
by Wrigley on Fremont Street. :

109 Wrigley Memorial is listed by Gebhard and Winter as being built in 1924 to designs by the Chicago planning
and landscape firm of Bennett, Parsons, and Frost.  The 1924 date appears to be in error, since DMR’s wording
leaves nodoubt that it was built following Wrigley's death in 1932. Also, a newspaper article written two days
after Wrigley's death (PSN 1/27/32) refers to plans for a mausoleum to be built on Catalina.

10 Wrigley left $10,000 to DMR in his will. His estate was valued at about $35,000,000 (PSN 2/29/32).
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